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McGladrey

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Duluth, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Eerror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth,
Minnesota, as of September 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Member of the RSM International network of independent accounting, tax and consulting firms.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 - 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an approptiate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's basic financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, the financial data
schedule and the schedule of public housing capital funds are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the financial data schedule and the schedule of public
housing capital funds are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, the financial data schedule and the schedule of public housing capital
funds are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 22, 2015,
on our consideration of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internat control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

/%c% L

Duluth, Minnesota
April 22, 2015
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

This section of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's (the Authority) annual
financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the
year ended September 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The Authority’s assets exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2014, by $62.3 million; this
amount is identified as net position. Unrestricted net position is $31.3 million. Of the unrestricted
amount, $12.2 million is invested in long-term loans receivable leaving $19.1 million as the
amount that may be used to meet the Authority's ongoing obligations.

The Authority's total net position decreased by $311,000 in fiscal year 2014,

As of September 30, 2014, the Authority's governmental activities reported combined ending net
position of $13.5 million, a decrease of $46,000 compared to 2013. Net position of $13.0 million is
reported as unrestricted, which is considered available for spending at the Authority's discretion.

As of September 30, 2014, the Proprietary Fund's unrestricted net position was $18.6 million or
38 percent of total Proprietary Fund net position. Of the unrestricted amount, $12.1 million is
invested in long-term loans receivable leaving $6.5 million as the amount that may be used to
meet the Proprietary Fund's ongoing obligations.

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the Housing and Redevelopment Authority's
basic financial statements, which consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The report also coniains other
supptementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide information about
the Housing Authority’s overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
Housing Authority, reporting the Housing Authority’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

1. Gévernmental funds statements explain how general government expenditures of
rehabilitation, administration, capital outiay and debt service were financed, as well as, how
tax levy proceeds were utilized for the short-term and what remains for future spending.

2. Propristary funds statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the Housing Authority operates Jike businesses, such as Owned Housing.

3. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships where the
Housing Authority acts solely as a trustee or an agent for the benefit of others, o whom the
resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
and other supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements.



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The government-wide financial statements are designed to give users a broad overview of the Authority's
finances, in a manner similar to that of a private-sector business. The statement of net position presents
information on all of the Authority's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net position. increases or decreases in net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the Authority's financial position is improving or deteriorating. The statement of activities shows how the
Authority's net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event that caused the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of the related cash flows.
There are revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal years; examples include uncollected taxes and vacation days that are earned, but not

used.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish between functions that are mainly
supported by tax levies and intergovernmental revenues. The first functions are identified in the
statements as governmental activities, while the latter functions are reported as business-type activities.
The Authority's governmental activities include tax levy proceeds and uses, rehabilitation, administration,
capital outlay and debt service. The Authority's business-type activities include owned housing, Section 8,
Capital Fund, HOPE VI and special purpose grants.

The two government-wide financial statements are presented immediately after this discussion and
analysis.

Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

Afund is a set of related accounts that is used to control resources that have been segregated to carry on
specific activities or to attain certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or
limitations. The Authority, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All Authority funds are divided into one
of three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds or fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than the
government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in order to gain a better understanding
of the long-term impact of the Authority's near-term financing decisions. The governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide reconciliation to aid in the comparison of governmental funds with governmental activities.

The Authority maintains a number of individual governmental funds. information is presented separately
in the governmental fund financial statements for the General, CDBG Programs, HOME Program and
Minnesota State Programs, Lead Based Paint and Tax Increment District, all of which are considered to

be major funds.

The Authority adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. The budgetary comparison
schedule - general fund, included in the basic financial statement seciion of this report, demonstrates

compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds: The Authority maintains enterprise type proprietary funds. The enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Proprietary fund financial statemenis provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Information is presented separately in the
proprietary fund financial statements for Owned Housing, HUD Funded; Owned Housing, Other; Housing
Assistance, HUD Funded; Housing Assistance, Other; and Central Office Cost Center, all of which are

considered to be major funds.



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
of the Authority, and are not included in the government-wide financial statements because their
resources are not available to support the Authority's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is similar to that used for proprietary funds. The statement of fiduciary net position and statement of
changes in fiduciary net position are included in the basic financial staiement section of this report.

Notes to Financial Statements _
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

Over time, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the Authority's financial position. The largest
portion of the Authority's net position is invested in capital assets (land, buildings, equipment), less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Authority uses these assets to provide
services to its clients; therefore, these assets are not avaitable for future spending. Although the
Authority's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it is important to realize that the
resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of net position is restricted by grantors for housing programs. The remaining balance of net
position is unrestricted. Of the unrestricted net position, $12.1 million is invested in long-term loans
receivable leaving $19.5 million available to be used to meet the Authority's ongoing obligations to its
clients and creditors. As of September 30, 2014, all three categories of net position, both for the Authority
as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities, had positive balances.

The following presents a summary of the Authority's net position at September 30, 2014 and 2013:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and Other Assets $ 15091135 § 16614117 § 25266175 $ 24,646,128 $ 40,357,310 § 41,280,246
Capital Assels 55,192 56,105 28,533,595 28,578,010 28,588,787 28,634,115
Total assets 15,146,327 16,670,222 53,799,770 53,224,139 68,946,097 69,894,361
Long-Term Debt Ouistanding 797,214 1,890,675 2,977,952 2,381,597 3,775,166 4,272,272
Other Liakilities 561,118 988,199 2,030,802 1,786,720 2,581,920 2,784,918
Total liabilities 1,358,332 2,888,874 5,008,754 4,168,317 6,367,086 7,057,191
Deferred Inflows of Resources,
property tax 301,656 249,283 - - 301,656 249,283
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 55,192 56,105 25,565,643 26,196,413 25,610,835 26,252,518
Restricted 450,181 372,532 4,954,694 6,369,180 5,404,875 6,741,712
Unrestricted, invested in long-term
loans receivable - - 12,146,322 10,723,370 12,149,322 10,723,370
Unrestricted 12,980,966 13,103,428 6,131,357 5,766,859 19,112,323 18,870,287
Total net position $ 13486330 5 13,532.085 $ 48791016 & 49055822 § 62277355 § 62,587,887




Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Buluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

To give users a better understanding of the sources and uses of the Authority’s net position, the following
presents a summary of revenues and expenses for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues
Prograrn revenues:
Charges for services 3 - $ - $ 2851331 § 2707520 $ 2,851,331 § 2,707,520
Cperating grants and
contributions 1,280,643 2,022,181 11,619,645 10,637,170 12,900,288 12,659,351
Capital grants and contributions - - 1,233,122 1,709,784 1,233,122 1,709,784
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,132,546 089,774 - - 1,132,546 989,774
Nondwelling rent 56,660 8,529 270,005 292,250 326,665 300,779
Other 498,909 436,245 584,501 1,230,164 1,184,410 1,667,109
Total revenues 2,968,758 3,457,429 16,658,604 16,576,888 19,628,362 20,034,317
Expenses
Rehabilitation 754,992 952,752 - - 754,992 952,752
Administration 1,664,064 1,481,948 - - 1,664,064 1,481,848
Interest on long-term debt 122,329 102,599 - - 122,329 102,599
Owned Housing - - 7,088,097 7,230,619 7,088,097 7,230,619
Other owned housing - - 130,687 - 130,697 -
HUD funded housing assistance - - 7,450,240 7,684,530 7,450,240 7,684,530
Cther housing assistance - - 773,885 660,189 773,865 660,199
Central Office Cost Center - - 1,528,043 1,357,634 1,528,043 1,357,634
(Gain) loss on disposal of
structures and equipment 406,160 64,693 20,407 {7,500} 426,567 57,193
Total expenses 2,847,545 2,601,992 16,991,349 16,925,482 19,938,894 19,527,474
Increase {decrease) in net
assets before transfers 22,213 855,437 {332,745) (348,584} (310,532) 506,843
Transfers In {Out) (67,939) (294,632) 67,939 294,632 - -
Increase (decrease)
in net posifion (45,726) 560,805 {264,806) (53,962) {310,532) 506,842
Net Pasition, beginning 13,532,065 12,971,260 49,055,822 49,109,784 62,587,887 62,081,044
Net Pasition, ending $§ 13486339 5 13532065 % 48791016 $ 49055822 § 62277355 § 62587887




Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Governmental Activities Revenue

m Operating grants and
contributions

O Charges for services and
other

® Property taxes

Business-Type Activities Revenue

® Operating grants and
contributions

OCharges for services and
other

# Nondwelling rent

m Capital grants

Fund Financial Analysis
The Housing and Redevelopment Authority uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Authority's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. This information is helpful in assessing the
Authority's financing requirements. Unreserved fund balance may be an especially useful measure of the
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of September 30, 2014, the
Authority's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $4.5 million, a decrease of
$399,000 from 2013. Of the total fund balance amount, $2.0 million, or 44 percent, is reported as
nonspendable, restricted or committed for specific purposes. The remaining amount of $2.5 million is
reported as unassigned and is available for spending at the Authority's discretion.

7



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority. At
September 30, 2014, fund balance of the General Fund was $4.1 million, with $1.5 million reported as
nonspendable or committed. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The fund balance of the
General Fund decreased by $481,000 during 2014.

Proprietary Funds: The Authority’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

As of September 30, 2014, the Authority's propristary funds reported combined net position of $48.8
million, a decrease of $265,000 from 2014, Of the total net position amount, $18.6 million is reported as
unrestricted. Of the unrestricted amount, $12.1 million is invested in long-term loans receivable leaving
$6.5 million which is available for spending at the Authority's discretion. Of the unrestricted net position
$17.7 million is in Owned Housing Funds. The remaining $889,000 of unrestricted net position is from the
Authority's Housing Assistance Funds and Central Office Cost Center.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The budget estimated that fund balance would decrease $2.1 million; the actual change to the fund
balance for the year was a decrease of $481,000.

Capital Assets

The Authority's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 30, 2014, was $28.6 million. This investment includes land and
improvements, buildings and equipment. The Authority's total investment in capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, decreased by less than 1 percent during 2014. Additional information related
to the Authority's capital assets can be found in Note 7 of the notes to the financial statements.

Long-Term Debt
The Authority had $3.8 million of debt outstanding as of September 30, 2014, made principal payments of
$1.3 million during the fiscal year and issued $839,000 of debt during the year.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets

Congressional appropriations for the upcoming calendar year continue at reduced levels. Once again,
housing authorities may need to draw down operating reserves to cover shortfalls. The Authority is
anticipating operating deficits in the public housing and Section 8 programs as a result of reduced
appropriations. Community Development Block Grant funding for housing rehabilitation programs is also
expected to be reduced.

The HOPE VI grant for the revitalization of the Harbor Highlands neighborhood and related developments
has been fully expended, and program income from loan repayments is expected to be utilized for the
remaining planned development of affordable home ownership, as market conditions allow. The HRA has
taken on the role of property manager for the 185 on-site units of mixed-finance/ mixed-income rental
housing that has been constructed through four phases of development, and is considering the possibility
of becoming the managing member of Phase |,

The Authority continues to market lots in its Hawk Ridge Estates development. A third and final phase of
infrastructure construction has been recently completed, including streets and utilities funded through the
issuance of bonds. Although [ots are selling, a reduction in Tax Increment Financing revenues is
expected over the term of the TIF district, due to slower sales and softer market conditions than originally
projected.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2014

The HRA may participate in neighborhood revitalization activities as a partner in the "At Home in Duluth”
collaborative, including the recently completed Higher Education Plan affecting campus neighborhoods.
An infill housing development program known as "Build Up Duluth” has been initiated using tax levy
proceeds. The Authority has committed to assist with the preservation of the significant Gateway Tower
project in the downtown area. The Authority continues to actively explore a number of potential
development initiatives that would further serve the city’s housing and community development needs
during a time of employment and population growth coupled with housing demand.

Requests for Information

This financial report is meant to provide a general overview of the Housing and Redevelopment
Autherity's finances for all those with an interest in the Authority's finances. Questions concerning
information provided in the report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to
the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, P.O. Box 16900, 222 East Second Street, Duluth,
Minnesota 55816, Attention: Deputy Director.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statemnent of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and investments:
Unrestricied $ 3468814 $ 6,115127 § 9,583,941
Restricted 708,297 5,114,713 5,823,010
Property taxes receivable 646,615 - 646,615
Interest receivable 19,367 232,917 259,284
Other receivables 14,440 77,547 91,987
Due from other governments 386,518 334,422 720,240
Prepaid items 7,282 271,112 278,394
Internal balances 236,508 (236,508) -
Loans receivahle 6,216,492 13,349,845 19,566,337
Assets held for development 3,386,802 - 3,386,802
Land, structures and equipment, net 55,192 28,533,595 28,588,787
Total assets 15,146,327 53,799,770 68,946,097
Liabilities
Accounts payable 273,487 458,483 731,970
Due to other governments - 258,903 258,903
Security deposiis - 197,377 197,377
Accrued lizbilities 279,131 1,009,440 1,288,571
Unearned revenue 8,500 106,599 115,099
Long-term debt:
Due within one year 69,277 254,050 323,327
Due in more than one year 727,937 2,723,902 3,451,839
Total liabilities 1,358,332 5,008,754 6,367,086
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property tax revenue 301,656 - 301,856
Total deferred inflows of
resotrces 301,656 - 301,656
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 55,192 25,655,643 25,610,835
Restricted for housing programs 450,181 4,954,694 5,404,875
Unrestricted, invested in long-term loans
receivable - 12,149,322 12,149,322
Unrestricted 12,980,966 6,131,357 19,112,323
Total net position $ 13,486,338 $ 48791016 §$ 62277355

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Operating Grants  Capital Grants

Charges for and and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
Rehabilitation 5 754,992  § - $ 1280643 § -
Administration 1,664,064 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 122,329 - - -
Total governmental
activities 2,541,385 - 1,280,643 -
Business-type activities:
HUD funded owned
housing 7,088,097 2,782,986 2,699,638 1,233,122
Other owned housing 130,697 68,345 - -
HUD funded housing
assistance 7,450,240 - 7,869,455 -
Other housing assistance 773,865 - 798,875 -
Central office cost center 1,528,043 - 251,677 -
Total business-type
activities 16,970,942 2,851,331 11,619,645 1,233,122
Total primary
government $ 19,512,327 $ 2,851,331 $ 12900288 $§ 1,233122

General Revenues

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Investment earnings

Interest earnings, loans receivable

Miscellaneous

Nondwelling rent

Loss on disposal of sfructures and equipment
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net Position, beginning
Net Position, ending

See Notes to Financial Statements.

11
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Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Position

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 525651 § - $ 525,651
(1,664,064) - (1,664,064)
(122,329) - (122,329)
(1,260,742) - (1,280,742)
- (372,351) {372,351)
- (62,352) {62,352)
- 419,216 419,215
- 25,010 25,010
- (1,276,366) (1,276,368)
- (1,266,844) (1,266,844)
{1,260,742) {1,266,844) (2,527,586)
1,132,546 - 1,132,546
18,688 45,225 63,913
200,548 551,250 751,798
280,673 88,026 368,699
56,660 270,005 326,665
(4086,160) (20,407} {426,567)
{67,939) 67,939 -
1,215,016 1,002,038 2,217,054
(45,726) {264,808) {310,532)
13,532,065 49,055,822 62,587,887
$ 13486339 $ 48791016 $ 62277355
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30, 2014

CDBG Home
General Programs Program
Assets
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted $ 3414513 % 24896 % -
Restricted 228,503 418,003 -
Accounts receivable 14,440 - -
Property tax receivable 559,175 - -
Interest receivable 19,367 - -
Due from other governments 800 179,231 122,468
Prepaid items 3,878 3,408 -
Due from other funds 1,882,264 - -
Advance from other funds 2,090,034 - -
Loans receivable 4,444 324 1,152,140 -
Total assets $ 12657206 $ 1777676 $ 122,468
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 82,105 § 95,417 § 88,896
Accrued liahilities 37,905 36,386 -
Unearned revenue 4. 444 324 1,152,140 -
Due to other funds 1,305,781 108,399 33,5672
Advance to other funds 2,090,034 - -
Total liabilities 7,960,149 1,392,342 122,468
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property tax revenue 559,175 - -
Total deferred inflows of
resources 559,175 - -
Fund Balances
Nonspendable, prepaids 3,876 3,406 -
Restricted - 381,928 -
Committed 1,330,031 - -
Unassigned 2,804,065 - -
Total fund balances (deficit) 4,137,972 385,334 -
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances _$ 12657296 $ 1777676 S 122,468

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Minnesota State { ead Based Tax Increment
Programs Paint District Eliminations Total
$ 24670 % - $ 4735 § - $ 3,468,814
61,791 - - - 708,297
- - - - 14,440
- - 87,440 - 646,615
- - - - 19,367
- 84,019 - - 386,518
- - - - 7.282
- - - {1,305,781) 576,483
- - - (2,090,034) -
620,028 - - - 6,216,492
3 706,489 3 84019 § 92175 $ (3,395.815) § 12044,308
3 448 3% 6563 § 58 % - 3 273,487
9,260 - - - 83,551
628,528 - - - 6,224,992
- 77,456 120,548 (1,305,781) 339,975
- - - {2,090,034) -
638,236 84,019 120,606 (3,395,815) 6,922,005
- - 87,440 - 646,615
- - 87,440 - 646,615
- - - - 7.282
68,253 - - - 450,181
- - - - 1,330,031
- - {115,871) - 2,688,194
68,253 - {115,871) - 4 475 688
3 706,489 $ 84019 § 92175 § (3,395815) $ 12044308
14



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Total Fund Balance, governmental funds $ 4475688

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:
Capital assets and assets held for development used in governmental
activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. 3.441,994
Other long-term assets, including loans receivable, are not available
to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred

in the funds. 6,216,492
Long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, is not reported in the funds. {797,214)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 344 959

Compensated absence liability not payable with current and available
resources are not reported as fund liabilities in governmental fund
statements. All liabilities, both current and long-temm, are reported
in the statement of net position. : (195,580}

Net position of governmental activities $ 13486,339

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2014

CDBG Home
General Programs Program
Revenue
Governmental grants - 3 589,034 % 217,809
Property taxes 918,361 - -
Investment income 18,609 77 -
Interest earnings, loans receivable 194,355 1,164 -
Proceeds from sale of assets held
for development 1,491,781 - -
Other 280,673 56,660 -
Total revenue 2,903,779 646,935 217,808
Expenditures
Rehabilitation 67,115 318,275 193,798
Administrative 914,385 295,116 24,320
Capital outlay/acquisition of assets
held for sale 1,018,643 - -
Debt service:
Principal 1,093,481 - -
interest 142,326 - -
Total expenditures 3,236,930 613,391 218,118
Excess (deficit) of revenue over
expenditures (333,151) 33,544 (309)
Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Proceeds from repayment of loans receivable 358,848 132,441 -
Issuance of loans receivable (547,290) (108,296) -
Property acquired through foreclosure an
loans receivable 131,250 - -
Interfund transfers, in 245,285 22,045 309
Interfund transfers, out (335,578) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (147,485) 46,190 309
Net change in fund balances (480,636) 78,734 -
Fund Balances (Deficit}, beginning 4,618,608 305,600 -
Fund Balances (Deficit), ending 4137972 8 385334 § -

See Notes to Financial Statements,




Minnesota State Lead Based Tax Increment
Programs Paint District Total

3 95877 § 377,924 % - $ 1,280,644

. - 144,289 1,062,850

2 - - 18,688

5,02¢ - - 200,548

84,854 - - 1,576,635

- - - 337,333

185,762 377,924 144,289 4,476,498

95,903 79,902 - 754,993

3,202 298,022 135,234 1,670,979

20,175 - - 1,039,818

- - - 1,093,461

- - 4,673 146,999

119,280 377,924 140,607 4,706,250
66,482 - 3,682 (229,752)

— 16,557 - - 507,846
{84,853) - - (740,439)

- - - 131,250

- - - 267,639
- - - (335,578)
(68,296) - - (169,282)
{1,814) - 3,682 (399,034)

70,067 - {119,553) 4,874,722

3 68,253 3 - 3 {115,871) § 4475688
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balances, total governmental funds $ (399,034)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:
Governmental funds report capital cuilays as expenditures. However,
in the staternent of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the
the current period. 1,038,903
In the statement of activities, only gain on the sale of assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale
increased financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs

from the change in fund balance by the proceeds from assets sold. (1,982,795)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 69,896
Expenditures related to issuance of loans receivable and principal payments

on long-term debt are not reported as expense for Governmental Activities. 1,833,901
Receipts related to bond proceeds and loans receivable are not reported

as revenue for governmental activities. (639,095)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. This is the amount of the change

in accrued compensated absences and accrued interest expense. 32,498
Change in net position of governmental activities 3 {45.726)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Budgeted Variance with
Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original and Final Amounis Positive (Negative)
Resources (Inflows)
Properly taxes $ 1,03485 % 918,361 & (116,494)
Investment income 12,750 18,608 5,859
Interest earnings, loans receivable - 194,355 194,355
Proceeds from sale of assets held
for development 145,000 1,491,781 1,346,781
Proceeds from repayment of loans receivable - 358,848 358,848
Property acguired through foreclosure on
loans receivable - 131,250 131,250
Transfer in - 245,285 245,285
Other 53,839 280,673 226,834
Amounts available for appropriation $ 1246444 §$ 3639162 §$ 2392718
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)
Rehabilitation $ - $ 67,115 §$ {67,115)
Administrative 785,929 914,385 {128,456)
Capital outlay/acquisition of assets
held for sale 2,040,000 1,019,643 1,020,357
Debt service:
Principal 128,938 1,093,461 (964,523)
Interest - 142,328 (142,326)
Issuance of loan receivables 90,000 547,290 (457,290)
Transfers out 303,026 335,578 {32,652)
Total charges to appropriations $ 3347893 § 4119798 % (771,905)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Heusing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities, Enterprise Funds

Owned Housing Housing Assistance
HUD Funded Other HUD Funded Other
Assels
Cash and Iinvesiments:
Unrestricted $ 4833769 § 71,305 $% 236,012 % 9,660
Restricted 4,945 739 - 168,974 -
Accounts raceivable 27,976 47,266 - -
Interest receivable 239,917 - - -
Due from other governments 72,193 - 33,521 152,945
Prepaid expenses 120,612 33,698 6,227 -
Due from other funds 3 - - -
Loans receivable 13,349,845 - - -
Land, structures and equipmeant, net 27,442,871 886,723 - {887)
Total assets 51,032,925 1,038,892 444 734 161,718
Liabilities
Accounts payzble 353,872 87,968 1,368 7,283
Due to other governments 217,917 10,861 29,088 1,037
Security deposits 191,032 6,345 - -
Unearned revenue 97,076 - - 9,523
Accrued expenses 491,366 - 125,459 5,435
Due to other funds 3 108,362 - 128,146
Long-term debt:
Due within one year 254,050 - - -
Due in more than one year 1,885,400 838,502 - -
Total liabilities 3,490,716 1,052,038 155,916 151,424
Net Position
Net investment in capital assels 25,303,421 48,221 - (887)
Restricted for:
Hope VI project 4,785,720 - - -
Housing Assistance Payments - - 168,974 -
Unrestricted, invested in long-term loans
receivable 12,149,322 - - -
Unrestricted 5,303,746 {61,267) 119,844 11,181
Total net position $ 47542208 % (13,0468) 288,818 & 10,294

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities, Enterprise Funds

Central Office

Cost Center Eliminations Total
$ 964,381 - $ 6,115127
- - 5,114,713
2,305 - 77,547
- - 239,917
75,763 - 334,422
110,575 - 271,112
- - 3
- - 13,348,845
204,888 - 28,533,595
1,357,912 - 54,036,281
7,991 - 458,483
- - 258,903
- - 197,377
- - 106,599
387,180 - 1,009,440
- - 236,511
- - 254,050
- - 2,723,902
395,171 - 5,245,265
204,888 - 25,555,643
- - 4,785,720
- - 168,974
- - 12,149,322
757,853 - 6,131,357
3 862,741 - $ 48,791,018
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities, Enterprise Funds

Owned Housing

Housing Assisiance

HUD Funded Other HUD Funded Other
Operating Revenues
Tenant:
Rental $ 2,566,477 $ 64,215 - 3 -
Other 216,509 4,130 - “
HUD grant 2,699,638 - 7,869,455 478,218
Other governmental grants - - - 320,657
Management fee - - - -
Other 29,050 445 56,827 1,704
Total operating revenues 5,511,674 68,790 7,926,282 800,579
Operating Expenses
Administrative 2,154,782 104,298 1,025,203 198,296
Tenant services 28,635 - - -
Housing assistance payments - - 6,748,684 569,845
Utilities 876,192 15,852 - -
Ordinary maintenance and operations 2,126,480 7,373 424 47
Protective services 12,720 - - -
General 553,880 12,584 {(4,557) 718
Extraordinary maintenance 182,755 - - -
Depreciation 2,097,909 - - 887
Total operating expenses 8,033,253 140,107 7,769,754 799,793
Operating income {loss) (2,521,579) (71,317) 156,528 788
Nonoperating Revenues
Investment income 45,196 - - -
Interest earnings, loans receivable 551,250 - - -
Nondwelling rent 270,005 - - -
Gain on sale of capital assets (20,407) - - -
Total nonoperating revenue 846,044 - - -
Income (loss) before capital
contributions and transfers (1,675,535) {71,317) 156,528 786
Capital Contributions 1,233,122 - - -
Interfund Transfers
In 1,810,745 58,271 1,790 137
Cut (1,803,004) - - -
Change in net position (434,672) {13,048) 158,318 923
Total Net Position, beginning 47 978,881 - 130,500 9,371
Total Net Position, ending § 47542209 3% (13,046) 288818 § 10,294

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities, Enterprise Funds

Central Office

Cost Center Eliminaticns Tofal
$ - - $ 2,630,692
- - 220,639
- - 11,047,311
- - 320,657
1,651,685 (1,300,008) 251,877
- - 88,026
1,551,685 (1,300,008) 14,559,002
1,473,468 (1,300,008) 3,656,039
- - 28,535
- - 7,348,529
1,178 - 893,222
5,032 - 2,139,356
- - 12,720
33,274 - 595,899
- - 182,755
15,091 - 2,143,887
1,528,043 {1,300,008) 16,970,942
23,642 - (2,411,940)
29 - 45225
- - 551,250
- - 270,005
— - - (20,407)
28 - 846,073
23,671 - (1,565,867)
- - 1,233,122
- - 1,870,943
- - (1,803,004)
23,671 - (264,808)
939,070 - 49,055,822
$ 962,741 - $ 48,791,016
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Business-Type Aclivities, Enterprise Funds

Qwned Housing Housing Assistance Central Office
HUD Funded Other HUD Funded Other Cost Center Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from tenants $ 3293380 3§ 27424 % - $ - $ - § 3320814
Receipts frorn other governments 2,779,341 10,861 7,916,541 739,120 - 11,445,863
Payments to suppliers/housing owners (4,455,407) (24,382) (7,356,903) (790,554) (623,257} (13,250,503}
Payments to employees {1,376,357) {61,455) (420,280} (25,370) (877,881) {2,761,143)
Other receipts (190,127) 108,807 56,827 75,037 1,551,791 1,602,335
Other payments {520,373) - - 887 (23,855) {543,341)
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities (468,533) 61,255 186,185 (880) 26,998 (185,875}
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Interfund transfers:
In 1,810,745 58,271 1,720 137 - 1,870,943
Out {1,8C3,004) - - - - (1,803,004}
Net cash provided by
noncapital financing
activities 7,741 58,271 1,790 137 - 67,939
Cash Flows From Capita! and
Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions received 1,233,122 - - - 1,233,122
Capital improvemeants (1,197,8486) (886,723) - - (5,310} (2,089,879)
Principal payments on capital lease (242,147) §38,502 - - - 596,355
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities (206,871) {48,221) - - {5,310) (260,402)
Cash Flows From investing Activities
Interest 556,505 - - - 29 556,534
Net cash provided by
investing activities 556,505 - - - 29 556,534
Net increase {decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents (112,158) 71,305 197,875 (743) 21,717 178,096
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of year 9,891,666 - 207,011 10,403 942 664 11,051,744
End of year $§ 9779508 % 71,305 & 404986 § 9660 % 954381 § 11.229.840
(Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities, Enterprise Funds

Owned Housing Housing Assistance Central Office
HUD Funded QOther HUD Funded Other Cost Center Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by
{Used In) Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ (2,521,579) % (71,317) § 156528 § 786 23642 § {2,411,940)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income {loss) to net cash provided
by {used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 2,097,909 - - 887 15,091 2,113,887
Nandwelling rent 270,005 - - - - 270,005
Changes in assets and fizbilities:
Accounts receivable 514,084 (47,256) - - 106 466,924
Due from other governments 64,089 - 29,362 (68,611) (20,963) 3,877
Prepaid expenses 1,723 (33,698) (493) - (11,353) (43,821)
Due from other funds 364 - 1,763 - - 2127
Loans receivable {520,373) - - - - {520,373}
Accounts payable 42,719 87,968 {1,894) (15,388) (5,612) 107,813
Due to other governments (17,867) 10,861 17,724 1,037 - 11,755
Accrued expenses 59,138 - (6,805) (763) 28,972 80,548
Security deposits (3,680) 6,345 - - - 2,865
Deferred revenue 33,481 - - 7,819 - 41,300
Due to other funds {489,546) 108,362 - 73,333 (2,592) (310,743)
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities § (469,533) § 61,255 & 196185 _§ {880) 26808 $  (185,975)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2014

Private-Purpose

Trust
Kitchen
Equipment Agency Fund
Escrow Applicant Funds
Assets, cash and investments $ 2151  § 118,501
Liabilities, accrued expenses - 3 118,501
Net Position, unrestricted 5 2,151

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Private-Purpose

Trust
Kitchen
Equipment

Escrow
Additions, reimbursements for ordinary maintenance and operations $ 2,707
Deductions, ordinary maintenance and operations 2,147
Change in net position 560
Net Position, beginning 1,591
Net Position, ending 3 2,151

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Financial Reporting Entity, Basis of Presentation,
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations: The Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota (HRA) (the
Authority) is a public body, corporate and politic, of the State of Minnesota, created by the City of Duluth
pursuant to the Minnesota Housing and Redevelopment Authority Act of 1947. The powers of the
Authority are vested in its seven-member Board of Commissioners, the members of which are appointed

by the Mayor of Duluth,

The Authority uses available federal, state, and local resources to serve the residents of the City of
Duluth, Minnesota, by: a) upgrading and maintaining the existing housing stock, b) encouraging the
construction of new housing affordable to low and moderate income households, ¢) promoting economic
development efforts and providing assistance through community development programs, and d)
providing low and moderate income families and senior households with decent, safe, and affordable
rental housing opportunities. These services are provided by the Authority through the administration of
various programs, including the administration of the federal Community Development Block Grant
program, federal and state home improvement, construction and management of federal and locally
funded rental housing facilities, administration of the federal Section 8 rent assistance program and
housing rehabilitation programs.

The accompanying financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to governments.

Financial reporting entity: In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision whether to include a component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in Section 2100 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Cedification. These criteria state that the financial reporting entity
consist of: (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based
on these criteria, there are no agencies or entities which should be included in the financial statements of

the Authority.

Related organization: The Authority is a legally separate organization from the City of Duluth with its
own rights and powers. Although the Mayor of the City of Duluth appoints all Authority Board members,
there is no financial accountability necessary for including this organization as a component unit of the
City of Duluth. Related party transactions are limited to payments by the City on various contracts for
services entered into with the Authority. The City made payments on various contracts totaling
$1,603,216 to the Authority in fiscal year 2014,

Basis of presentation: The Authority's external financial reporting is comprised of:

Government-wide financial statements

Fund financial statements and related reconciliations
Notes to the financial statements

Management’s discussion and analysis

PN

28



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Notes to Financial Statements

The external statements are prepared from accounts of the Authority that are organized and operated on
the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. The funds of the Authority are classified into categories: governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary. Each category is further divided into separate fund types. The fund categories and a description
of each existing fund type foltow:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the Authority's general government activities, inciuding the
collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of
capital assets and the servicing of long-term debt. Governmental funds include:

The General Fund is the Authority's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the Authority, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes. The Authority's special revenue funds and their purposes are as

follows:

CDBG Programs: Accounts for rehabilitation grants and loan subsidies awarded to qualifying
individuals. The City of Duluth provides the Authority with Community Development Block Grant
funds received from HUD to operate the project.

Home Program: Accounts for rehabilitation grants awarded to qualifying individuals under the
Home Investment Partnerships Programs and the Minnesota Urban and Rural Homesteading
Pragram. The funds are through the City of Duluth received from the Minnesota Housing Finance
Agency and the Federal HOME program.

Minnesota State Programs: Accounts for the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency grant for MURL
homes and Greater Minnesota Housing Finance grant for rehabilitation of houses.

Lead Based Paint: Accounts for the Duluth Housing and Redevelopment Authority’s lead based
paint education and abatement activities in the City of Duluth. Funding is from the State of
Minnesota through the Department of Health.

Tax Increment District: Accounts for the Authority's administration of established Housing
Districts. The administration of the District is handled by the Executive Director of the HRA,
assisted by the City of Duluth's Finance Department. All revenue derived from tax increment shall
be used in accordance with each of the TIF Plans. Currently, the Authority administers six
different housing districts in this Fund. At year-end, this fund reported a fund balance deficit. This
deficit will be funded through future {ax increment revenue.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Notes to Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary fund types account for the Authority's ongoing activities that are similar to those found in the

private sector. The following are the Authority's proprietary funds.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises or where periodic determination of revenues earned expenses
incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. The Authority's enterprise funds consist of the following:

Owned Housing, HUD Funded: The Authority manages units in apartment buildings and
individual and duplex dwellings that are rented to tenants who qualify under low-income
guidelines established by HUD. The development of the units was originally financed by the sale
of short-term notes. After the development was completed, long-term financing was obtained
through the sale of bond issues or by HUD project notes. Retirement of all debt and interest is
unconditionally guaranteed by HUD and is identified in the Annual Contributions Contract with
HUD. Development and modernization projects beginning in 1988 and thereafter are financed
directly by grants from HUD. Principal sources of revenue for continuing operations are dwelling
rentals and operating subsidies from HUD.

Owned Housing, Other: The Authority manages and rehabilitates apartment buildings and
individual and duplex dwellings that re rented to tenants who qualify under low-income guidelines
established by HUD. The rehabilitation and development of units are financed through long-term
notes. Principal sources of revenue for continuing operations are dwelling rentals and operating
subsidies from the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency.

Housing Assistance, HUD Funded: The Housing Assistance Payments Programs account for the
operation of the Lower Income Housing Assistance Programs and are authorized by the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1974, Public Law 73-383. HUD coniracts with the Authority
which in turn contracts with housing owners to make assistance payments for the difference
between the approved contract rent and the actual rent paid by the qualifying households. The
Authority has Annual Contribution Contracts (ACC) with HUD to assist low-income families in the
following Section 8 Programs: Housing Choice Vouchers, Moderate Rehabilitation and two Single
Room Occupancy Moderate Rehabilitation Programs.

Housing Assistance, Other: The Authority provides rental assistance to low-income families and
individuals through the following federal, state, county and local programs: Bridges, Son of
Bridges, RAFS, Shelter Plus Care and Home Tenant Based Rental Assistance.

Central Office Cost Center: The Central Office Cost Center accounts for management and
bookkeeping services provided to other funds of the Authority. These services are charged to the
governmental funds on a cost reimbursement basis and are charged to the other proprietary
funds based on rates established by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Autharity in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuais, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The following are the

Authority's fiduciary fund types:

Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and income
benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The following is the Authority's
Private Purpose Trust Fund:

30



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Notes to Financial Statemenis

Kitchen Equipment Escrow: Accounts for funds paid by the St. Louis County Community Social
Services Board, which are used for the maintenance, modification, additions, repair, or necessary
replacement of kitchen fixtures and equipment to carry out the programs administered by the
Board on the premises of the Authority.

Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely custodial
capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temparary
investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. The following is the Authority's Agency Fund:

Applicant Funds—Rehabilitation Escrow: Accounts for the matching portion paid by qualified
applicants for the rehabilitation of residential property or multi-unit rental property. The funds may
be required as part of the CDBG, Home or MEFA Programs. The Authority acts as an agent in
collecting and disbursing the funds for the applicants.

The funds listed above are aggregated in various presentations in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements and the fund financial siatements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

GWFS include the statement of net position and the statement of activities that display information about
the reporting government as a whole, including the enterprise funds. The effect of material interfund
activity has been eliminated from these statements.

Fund Financial Statements (FFS)
FFS are presented for the governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. These financial statements are
designed to present financial information of the Authority at a more detailed level.

Governmental FFS are comprised of a balance sheet, statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balance, equity and current year activity reconciliations to GWFS and revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance. The focus of these statements is on major funds, presented in a separate
column. The Authority reports the General Fund, CDBG Programs Fund, Home Program Fund, -
Minnesota State Programs Fund, Lead Based Paint Fund and the Tax Increment District Fund as
described above as major governrnental funds.

Proprietary FFS are comprised of a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net position and statement of cash flows. The focus of these statements is on major
funds, presented in a separate column. The Authority reports Owned Housing, HUD Funded; Owned
Housing, Other; Housing Assistance, HUD Funded; Housing Assistance, Other ;and the Central Office
Cost CGenter as described above as major proprietary funds.

Fiduciary FFS are comprised of a statement of net position and statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. The focus of these statements is on major funds, presented in a separate column. The Authority
reports the Kitchen Equipment Escrow and Applicant Funds—Rehabilitation Escrow as described above
as major fiduciary funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Economic resources measurement focus means that all assels
and all liabilities associated with the operations of the Authority are included in the statement of net
position, except for fiduciary activities. Accrual basis of accounting means revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.
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Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e. intended to finance).
Grants, entitlements, and similar itsms are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function,
segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect expenses not allocated to functions are reported
separately. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct
expense of each function. Program revenues include: 1) Charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
program and 2) Grants and entitlement revenues restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or program. Property taxes, state aids, and other items not reported
as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

The Authority applies eligible expenses against available restricted resources before use of unrestricted
resources.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Current financial resources measurement focus generally means that only
current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and
available”). "Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.

The Authority considers property tax revenues available if collected within 60 days and grants,
entitlements and others available if collected within 180 days after year-end. Property taxes, when levied
for, and state aids, grants, charges for services, and interest are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and are recognized as revenues of the fiscal year, All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the Authority receives cash.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured principal and
interest on long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences which are
recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial

resources.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

Proprietary and fiduciary fund types use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the related
iability is incurred. All transactions, except interest revenues are considered operating revenues or

expenses as applicable.

Significant Accounting Policies

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Budgets: The Authority is not legally required to prepare budgets for its general and special revenue
funds for financial statement purposes.

Cash and investments: Cash of the individual funds is combined for investment purposes. Investments
consist primarily of certificates of deposit and money market funds. Investments with an original maturity
of [ess than one year are recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Investments with an
original maturity of more than one year are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices. Interest
earned as a result of these investments and the combined deposit account is distributed to the
appropriate funds based on average cash and temporary investment balances of each fund.
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The Authority can only invest in the following HUD-approved instruments: direct obligations of the federal
government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, obligations of federal government
agencies, securities of government-sponsored agencies, demand and savings deposits, money market
deposit accounts, municipal depository fund, super NOW accounts, certificates of deposit, repurchase
agreements, sweep accounts, separate trading of registered interest and principal securities (STRIPS),
and mutual funds that consist of securities purchased from the HUD-approved list.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Authority considers all cash
accounts and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be

cash and cash equivalents.

Taxes receivableftax revenues: The Authority levies property taxes in December of each year to finance
the budgeted expenditures of the following fiscal year. The levies become an enforceable lien on the
properties on the first Monday in January. The Authority’s Board approves the tax capacity rates for the
support of the Authority's activities. The tax capacity rates are also approved by the Duluth City Council,
Property owners are required to pay one-half of their real estate taxes by May 15 and the balance by
October 15. The County assesses and collects the property taxes and remits the portion collected for the
Authority in July and December of each year. Property taxes certified in December 2013 and payable in
2014 are recognized as revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, subject to availability in
the fund financial statements and the tax levies are prorated based on the months in the fiscal years in

the government-wide statements.

Payment in lieu of taxes: Under a cooperative agreement with the City of Duluth, all the low-rent
housing projects are exempt from real and personal property taxes levied or imposed by any taxing body;
therefore, the Authority makes an annual payment in lieu of taxes equal to ten percent of all shelter rent
collected to the City of Duluth.

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) basis or market.

Interfund receivables/payables: Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/
borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either interfund
receivables/payables (the current portion of interfund loans) or advances toffrom other funds (the
noncurrent portion of interfund loans).

interfund transactions: Interfund transfers are reported as transfers.

Net assets: In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is presented
using the following three classifications:

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of
those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds.

Restricted net position are reported when there are limitations imposed on their use either by faw through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislations adopted by the Authority or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. Net assets restricted are as

follows:

Housing Programs: Net annual revenues generated by HUD financed properties restricted for future
development and expansion.

Unrestricted net position represent the amounts remaining after the previous components have baen
determined.
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Income taxes: The Authority is a governmental subdivision of the state of Minnesota and is exempt from
federal and state income taxes.

Risk management: The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority
provides medical insurance to its employees through the City of Duluth’s self-insured employee group
health plan. The Authority's agreement with the City has limited the Authority's cost to the premiums paid
and there has been no provision for retroactive claims in the past. The Authority could be assessed for
retroactive claims if the premiums charged were not deemed adeguate to fund program costs. The
Authority paid medical insurance premiums to the City of Duluth of $861,608 in 2014. The Authority
continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks, Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years.

Estimates: Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses/expenditures. Actual results
could vary from the estimates that were used.

Government-Wide Financial Statementis

Assets held for development: Assets held for development, including land and buildings, are recorded
at cost and are not depreciated. The Authority defines assets held for development as all costs
associated with purchasing and improving an asset so the asset is in a condition in which it can be sold io

the public.

Capital assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost and estimated historical cost and depreciated over
their estimated useful lives (excluding salvage value). The Authority defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of more than $5,000 and useful life of more than one year for equipment and furnishings
and $50,000 for buildings and improvements provided the improvement extends the useful life of the
building. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation. Interest costs
incurred during construction are capitalized. Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long
the asset is expecied to meet service demands. Straight-line depreciation is used based on the following

estimated useful lives:

Buildings 15 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment 3-27 years

Unearned revenue: Unearned revenue is recognized when the Authority receives resources before it
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the Authority has a legal claim to the resources, the liability
for unearned revenue is removed and revenue is recognized,

Deferred property tax revenue: Property taxes received or reported as receivable before the period for
which the property taxes are levied are reported as deferred property tax revenue.

Compensated absences: The Authority has contracts with several different employee groups. Employee
benefits under the contracts are different but generally include provisions for sick leave and vacation
leave and are described in Note 12,

Capital leases and long-term borrowings: Cbligations arising from the Issuance of debt instruments
and other contracts are reported as liabilities. Issuance costs are expensed as incurred.
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Fund Financial Statements
Assets held for development: Amounts incurred related to acquisition and renovations of property are

reported as fund expenditures.

Capital assets: Amounts incurred related to the acquisition of property and equipment are reported as
fund expenditures. Depreciation expense is not reported within fund financial statements.

Deferred property tax revenue: Property taxes not deemed available (not collected within 60 days after
year-end) are reported as deferred revenue.

Compensated absences: Liability represents the portion of the liability, as discussed under GWFS, that
is payable from current available resources.

Capital leases and long-term borrowings: Amounts expended for repayment of leases are reported as
expenditures. Proceeds from issuance of debt, including premiums or discounts, are reported as other

financing sources.

Fund balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is presented using the
following classifications:

Nonspendable fund balance is the amounts that cannot be spent either because they are (a) not in
nonspendable form or (b) because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance is amounts that are restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed
on the use of the resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors or state of federal
laws: or (b) imposed by law through the Authority’s constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance is amounts that can only be used only for specific purposes when pursuant
to constraints formally imposed by the Board of Commissioners through resolution approved prior to
year-end. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Commmissioners removes or changes the specified use by taking the same action it employed to

commit those amounts,

Assigned fund balance is amounts constrained by the Authority’s intent to use them for a specific
purpose as determined by the Authority's Finance Board and Comptroiier.

Unassigned fund balance is all amounts not included in other spendable classifications. The General
Fund is the only fund that would report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred in governmental funds which can be paid using either restricted or

unrestricted resources, the Authority’s procedure is to pay the expenditure from restricted fund balance
and then from less-restrictive classifications — committed, assigned, and then unassigned fund balances.
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Note 2.

Cash and Investments

Deposits: Minnesota Statutes require that alf deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in
an amount equal to 110 percent of deposits in excess of FDIC insurance (140 percent if collateralized
with notes secured by first mortgages). At year-end, the bank deposits were fully insured or collateralized
with securities held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority’s name.

Investments: Minnesota Statutes §118A.04 and §118A.05 generally authorizes the following types of
investments as available to the Authority:

Securities which are direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the United States,
its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress, except
mortgage-backed securities defined as "high risk" by Minnesota Statutes §118A.04, subd. 6;

Mutual funds through shares of registered investment companies provided the mutual fund
receives certain ratings depending on its investments:

General obligations of the State of Minnesota and its municipalities, and in certain state agency
and local obligations of Minnesota and other states provided such obligations have certain
specified bond ratings by a national bond rating servige;

Bankers' acceptances of United States banks:

Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries that is
rated in the highest quality category by two nationally recognized rating agencies and matures in
270 days or less; and

With certain restrictions, in repurchase agreements, securities lending agreements, joint powers
investment trusts, and guaranteed investment contracts.

As of September 30, 2014, the Authority's cash and investments balances were as follows:

Amount
Cash on hand 5 200
Deposits in financial institutions 4,131,403
Certificates of deposit 11,396,000
Cash and investments $ 15,527,603
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Note 3. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2014, is as follows:

Due toffrom other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund General Fund $ 1,305,781
CDBG Programs 108,399

Home Program 33,572

Lead Based Paint 77,456

Tax Increment District 120,548

Owned Housing, Other 108,362

Housing Assistance, Other 128,146

Owned Housing, HUD Funded Owned Housing, HUD Funded 3
$ 1,882,267

Interfund transfers:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fund General Fund $ 245,285
CDBG Programs General Fund 22,045
Home Program General Fund 309
Owned Housing, HUD Funded General Fund 7,741
Owned Housing, HUD Funded Owned Housing, HUD Funded 1,803,004
Owned Housing, Other General Fund 58,271
Housing Assistance, HUD Funded General Fund 1,780
Housing Assistance, Other General Fund 137

$ 2,138,582
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Note 4. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable at September 30, 2014, consist of the following:

Amount

Loans due from income-eligible families. Eighteen loans outstanding ranging
from $40,904 to $150,417. The loans require monthly payments of principal
only based on family's income and are for an indefinite period. The loans
are coilateralized by liens held by the Authority on the properties.

Instaliment loans for rental rehabilitation. Fifty-six loans outstanding ranging
from $1,443 to $152,197 The loans require monthly payments of principal
ranging from $24 to $1,573 inciuding interest at 2%. 1,068,311

Interest free rehabilitation loan due from Center City Windwood. Loan is due
in one lump sum at March 1, 2033. Loan is secured by mortgage. 60,000

Notes due from Central Hillside Development Limited Partnership. Two notes
outstanding with balances of $243,100 and $81,900. The notes are due in
full in 2025. The notes require interest only in the event of default as described
in the note document. Notes are secured by mortgage. 325,000

Note due from individual for rehabilitation. The note requires monthly interest
only at 5% and is due June 2017. 24,999

FPredevelopment loan due from development company associated with the
Harborview construction project. The loan was due December 31, 2011.

The loan calls for interest equal to the Wells Fargo Bank prime rate
plus 3% beginning from the date of default. The loan requires lump sum
payments at the due dates. 454,393

Loan due from Great Lakes Development Corporation, note has fixed 0%
interest rate and is due February 28, 2020. 50,000

Loan due from Great Lakes Development Corporation, note has fixed 0%
interest rate and is due upon approval of tax credit application. 47,026

Loans due from individuals who purchased land at Hawk Ridge. Seventeen
loans outstanding ranging from $8,449 to $80,250. The loans require lump
sum payments through 2043. The loans require interest ranging from 0%
to 3%. 729,255

Neighborhood Stabilization Program loans. Five loans outstanding with
balances ranging from $88,352 to $117,901. The loans require monthly
payments of principal based on purchaser income and interest at 1.0%

&

1,829,917

until 2015 through 2043 when the remaining balances are due. 518,786
Note for sale of property. The note requires monthly payments of $617

inciuding interest at 5%. Note is due in full in 2016, 108,259
Loan due from resident for sewer line replacement, note has fixed 0%

interest rate, $100 monthly payments, and is due in November 2018. 10,000

Loan due from Gateway Tower Inc for rehabilitation. The loan is due in full
April 2015. The loan requires monihly interest payments at 5.0%. There
is $409,454 left to draw. The loan is secured by a mortgage. 990,546

Total governmental activities $ 6,216,492

(Continued)
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Amount

Hope VI bridge note due from Harbor View Phase | LLC. The note was due
in full April 1, 2006. The note calls for interest at a fixed rate of 4.9%. The
note is secured by mortgage and security agreement.

Hope VI note due from Harbor View Phase |, LLC. The note is due in full in
2047. The note calls for interest equal to a blended applicable federal rate
as described in the note agreement, with all interest accruing yearly to be

added to principal. The note is secured by mortgage and security agreement.

Hope VI note due from Matterhorn Apartments, LLC. The note is due in full in
2049. The note calls for interest equal to a blended applicable federal rate
as described in the note agreement, with all interest accruing yearly to be

added to principal. The note is secured by mortgage and security agreement.

Hope VI early start notes due from development companies, consist of two
notes. Hope VI homeownership early start notes due from TCG Harbor
Homes, LLC, consist of two notes with batances of $32,654 and $107,077.
The notes were due December 31, 2011, and call for interest at 2.0% until
an event of default at which time interest will equal the Wells Fargo Bank
prime rate plus 3%. The notes are secured by affirmation of guaranty.

Program income homeownership early start notes due from TCG Harbor
Homes, LLC, consist of three notes with balances of $465,804, $245,385
and $62,229. The notes were due December 31, 2011, and call for interest
at 2.0% until an event of default at which time interest will equal the Wells
Fargo Bank prime rate plus 3%. The notes are secured by affirmation of
guaranty.

Hope VI note due from Harbor View Phase Il, LP. The note is due in full in
2049. The note calls for interest equal to a blended applicable federal rate
as described in the note agreement, with all interest accruing yearly to be

added to principal. The note is secured by morigage and security agreement.

Hope VI note due from Harbor View Phase Ill, LP. The note is due in full in
2052. The note calls for interest equal to a blended applicable federal rate
as described in the note agreement, with all interest accruing yearly to be

added to principal. The note is secured by mortgage and security agreement.

Hope VI note due from Harbor View Phase IV, LLC. The note is due in fullin
2050. The note calls for inierest at a fixed rate of 4.3%. The note is secured
by mortgage and security agreement.

Hope VI note due from Harbor View Phase IV, LLC. The note is due in full in
2050. The note calls for interest at a fixed rate of 4.3%. The note is secured
by mortgage and security agreement.

Total business-type activities
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Note 5. Contingent Program Assets Receivable

The Authority has various loans under the Community Development Block Grant Program {(CDBG) with
families to assist them with the modernization of existing homes through housing rehabilitation loans of up
to $7,000 per homeowner. The loans are secured by liens held by the Authority on the properties and are
forgiven after a 10-year period. If the homeowner sells their hore before the 10-year period has expired,
the entire loan must be repaid. The Authority does not record these loans as receivables as their
experience is that very few homeowners sell before the ten-year period has expired,

Note 6. Assets Held for Development

The Authority has $3,386,802 of land and buildings io be sold in subsequent years. The Authority
purchases buildings and rehabilitates them to a condition suitable for occupancy. The Authority also
purchases land to be sold with the intent the buyer will construct a house.

Note 7. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assels, not being depreciated,
land 3 51692 § - 3 - 3 51,692
Capital assets, being depreciated,
furniture and equipment 96,189 - - 96,189
Less accumulated depreciation for
furniture and equipment (91,778} (913) - (92,689)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 4,413 (213} - 3,500
Governmental activities,
capital assets, net % 56105 % (913) _ § - $ 55,192
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2883527 % 128,500 § - $ 3,012,027
Construction in progress 1,970,408 1,729,081 {2,165,656) 1,633,833
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 4,853,935 1,857,581 {2,165,6586) 4,545,860
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings . 66,272,681 2,393,342 (547,732) 68,118,291
Furniture and equipment 11,010,108 5,312 (43,725) 10,971,695
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 77,282,789 2,398,654 (591,457) 79,089,986
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {47,251,590) {1,809,368) 526,625 (48,534,333)
Furniture and equipment (6,307,124) (304,519) 43,725 {6,567,918)
Total accumulated depreciation (63,558,714) (2,113,887) 570,350 {55,102,251)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 23,724,075 284,767 (21,107} 23,887,735
Business-type aclivities,
capital assets, net $ 28578010 $ 2142348 $ (2186,763) $ 28,533,595
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Amount
Governmental Activities, rehabilitation $ 913
Business-Type Activities
Owned Housing $ 2,097,909
Cenfral Office Cost Center 15,091
Housing Assistance 887
Total depreciation expense, business-type activities $ 2,113,887
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Note 8. Conduit Debt Obligations

The Authority has issued several conduit debt notes and bonds. These notes and bonds are collateralized
by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage
loans. The Housing Authority has no obligation beyond the resources provided by the related loans.
Accordingly, the notes and bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

Amount

Health care facilities revenue note, series 20024, acquisition and

refinancing of a health care facility 3 67,211
Health care facilities revenue note, series 2002C, acquisition and

refinancing of a health care facility 76,547
Health care facilities revenue note, series 2003, acquisition and

refinancing of a health care facility 145,369
Revenue refunding bond, series 2012, construction of two nursing and

assisted living facilities 7,878,100
Health care and housing revenue bonds, series 2007, improvements to

a senijor housing and healthcare facility 8,515,000

Revenue note, series 2008A, construction, acquisition and installation

of equipment and capital improvements to a residential treatment,

fransitional and educational facilities 715,180
Revenue note, series 2008A, construction, acquisition and installation

of equipment and capital improvements to a residential treatment,

transitional and educational facilities 2,607,560
Revenue note, series 2009, replacement of gymnasium roof 238,053
Revenue note, series 2008A, acquisition, equipping and capital improvements

of a foster care facility and a bed, board and lodge facility 1,243,227
Revenue note, series 2009B, acquisition, equipping and capital improvements

of a foster care facility and a bed, board and lodge facility 489,626

Lease revenue bonds, series 2010A, acquisition of land, construction of a

charter school facility and renovation and expansion of a charter school

facility 17,770,000
Taxable lease revenue bonds, series 2010B, acquisition of land, construction

of a charter school facility and renovation and expansion of a charter

school facility 115,000
Revenue bonds, series 20124, refinance taxable indebtness incurred for
capital improvements to assisted living facility 1,530,334
Revenue note, series 2013, construction of 48 enhanced assisted
living nursing facility 5,750,000
$ 47,141,207
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Note 9. Long-Term Debt

The Authority issued $2,000,000 Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A. The ouistanding balance
at year-end is $797,214, Payments of principal and interest are due semiannually on each February 1
and August 1 continuing until maturity on August 1, 2024. Interest rate is adjusted August 1, 2014, and
2019 to equal to the 5 year treasury rate plus 1.35 percent subject to maximum adjustment of 2.0 percent
in 2014 and a maximum adjustment of 1.0 percent in 2018. The current rate is 3.83 percent. The
Authority has a special limited obligation as the bonds are payable solely from tax increments resulting
from increases In the taxable value of real property in the TIF District and the proceeds generated by the
sale of real property in the TIF District.

The Authority entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Siemens Public inc. The outstanding
balance at year-end is $2,139,452. The lease is due in monthly installments of $29,213 including interest

at a rate of 4.81 percent.

The Authority entered into the following 0 percent interest debt agreements with Minnesota Housing
Finance Agency (MHFA), Greater Minnesota Housing Fund (GMHF), and Duluth Economic Development
Authority (DEDA) for the purposes of acquiring and rehabilitating the Esmond housing facility. The
outstanding balances at year end and related maturity dates are as follows: MHFA, $518.441 due July 1,
2014; GMHF, $90,061, due July 1, 2019; and DEDA, $230,000 due July 1, 2017.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest
2015 3 69,277 % 23,863
2016 71,413 21,728
2017 73,614 19,527
2018 75,883 17,257
2019 78,222 14,018
2020-2024 428,805 36,897
3 797,214 _ $ 134,190

Business-Type Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest
2015 $ 254,050 $ 97,505
2016 265,493 85,061
2017 508,548 72,006
2018 292,246 58,308
2019 396,678 43,937
2020-2024 1,260,937 46,248
$ 2977952 § 403,085
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Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
Tax increment revenue bond $ 1,168,010 § - $ (368,798) § 797,214 % 69,277
Notes payable 724,685 - (724,665) - -
Governmental long-term
liahilities 1,890,675 - (1,093,461) 797,214 69,277
Business-Type Aclivities,
MHFA note payable - 518,441 - 518,441 -
GMHF note payable - 90,061 - 80,061 -
DEDA note payable - 230,000 - 230,000 -
Capital lease obligation 2,381,597 - (242,147} 2,139,450 254,050
Business-Type long-term
liabilities 2,381,597 838,502 (242,147) 2,977,952 254 050
Total governmental
and business-type
activities $ 4272272 § 838502 $(1,335608) $ 3775166 $ 323,327

Note 10. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue at September 30, 2014, consists of the following:

Amount
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Governmental activities, grant % 8,500
Business-type activities:
Rent advances 106,599
3 115,099
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental funds:
General fund:

Unearned loan revenue $ 4,444,324
CDBG Programs, deferred toan revenue 1,152,140
Minnesota State Programs:

Unearned loan revenue 620,028

Other 8,500

Total governmental funds 6,224,992
Proprietary funds:

Owned Housing, rent advances 97,076

Housing Assistance, grant 9,523

Total proprietary funds 106,599

Total fund financial statements : $ 6,331,591
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Note 11. Pension Plan

The Duluth Housing Authority money purchase pension plan is a defined contribution plan as described in
Section 404(c) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) and the regulations thereunder.
The plan is administered by a pension committee designated by the Board of Commissioners of the
Authority. The Authority reserves the right, by written resolution of the Board of Commissioners, to amend
or terminate the plan in the event the Authority deems It advisable.

All employees are eligible to participate in the plan on January 1 of the year following the date of
employment and will continue to participate so long as they work 1,000 hours during that plan year.
Pariicipants will not be entitled to the Authority's contribution for a plan year, unless they work at least
1,000 hours during that ptan year. The Authority contribuies 2.5 percent of each participant’s
compensation as defined in the plan. This contribution covers both the pension plan and the life insurance
plan. Employee contributions are not required or permitted. Employees must have at least 1,000 hours of
service in a plan year to begin vesting and in subsequent years to continue vesting. The employer's
contribution for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee’s account) vest evenly over a five-
year period. Employer's contributions and investment earnings for employees who leave employment
before their contributions vest are used to reduce the employer's contribution requirements. The
Authority's contribution to the plan was $385,846 for 2014.

Note 12. Vacation and Sick Leave

Vacation is earned by all nontemporary employees. Employees may carry up to 30 days of vacation to
subsequent years during their first 20 years of employment and up to 38 days thereafter. This carryover is
in addition to any vacation accrued in the current year. Vacation is accrued as earned. The liability for
unpaid vacation leave was $281,827 at September 30, 2014,

Sick leave is earned by all nontemporary employees. Employees may accumnulate up to 60 days sick
leave during their first six years of employment and 120 days thereafter. This accumulation is in addition
to any sick leave accrued in the current year. An employee who has been employed for at least fen years
may, upon retirement at age 55 or older, convert 75 percent of unused sick leave into a health care
savings plan. The Authority has accrued a liability for the estimated amount of accumulated sick leave
that will be paid into a healthcare savings plan. The amount accrued was $729,759 at September 30,

2014.

Note 13. Commitments

The Authority has entered into several contracts for general upgrades, repairs to facilities and other
general contracted services. There is approximately $1,180,922 to be incurred on these contracts in

future periods.
Note 14. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2014, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund.
These over expenditures were funded by greater than anticipated revenues in the General Fund.
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15. Fund Balances

The Authority's classifications of fund balances are as follows:

CDBG Minnesota State Tax Increment
General Programs Programs District Total

Nonspendable, prepaids 3 3876 § 3408 $ - $ - $ 7,282

Restricted, Housing Programs - 381,928 68,253 - 450,181
Committed, loan commitment:

Gateway Tower 409,454 - - - 409,454

Hawk Ridge 313,677 - - - 313,677
Committed, operating subsidy:

Section & 256,900 - - - 256,900

Esmond 350,000 - - - 350,000

Total committed 1,330,031 - - - 1,330,031

Unassigned 2,804,065 - (115,871) 2,688,194

$ 4137972 § 385334 § 68253 § (115871) $ 4475688

Note 16. Pending Accounting Standards

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the Authority. Listed below is a
statement which may impact future financial statements of the Authority:

GASBE Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. This Statement, issued
June 2012, will be effective for the Authority beginning with its year ending September 30, 2015. This
Statement will improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations. This
Statement, issued January 2013, will be effective for the Authority beginning with its year ending
September 30, 2015. This Statement will improve financial reporting by addressing accounting and
financial reporting for government combinations and disposals of government operations.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date. This Statement, issued November 2013, will be effective for the Authority beginning with its year
ending September 30, 2015. This Statement addresses an issue regarding application of the transition
provisions of Statement No. 88, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, The issue relates to
amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or
nonemployer contributing entity fo a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the
government's beginning net pension liability.

GASB Statement No, 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement, issued

February 2015, will be effective for the Authority beginning with its year ending September 30, 2016. This
statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring
measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more detailed definition
of fair value and accepted valuation techniques.

46



Supplementary Information

O

i b
1 :

L .

10

]

1

d

]

M
—J



O Ci T

—

B

L

.

Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Balance Sheet
Financial Data Schedule
September 30, 2014
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Other State
Line Section 8 Section 8 and County
ltem Housing Choice Moderate Section 8 Shelter Emergency Central Office
MNo. Account Description Owned Housing Esmond Hope VI Vouchers Rehabilitation Programs Plus Care Bervice Grant Cost Center
Assets
Current Assets
Cash;
111 Unrestricted $ 1,040,958 § 74,305 § 50,531 % 185800 § 15212 § - $ 137 % 9523 §% 964,381
113 Other restricted - - 160,019 168,974 - - - - -
Investments:
131 Unrestricted 2,640,000 - 1,102,280 25,000 - - - - -
132 Restricted - - 4,785,720 - - - - . -
100 Total cash 3,680,958 71,305 6,008,550 389,774 15,212 - 137 9,523 964,381
Accounts and Notes Receivables
Accounts receivable:
121 PHA projects - - - - - - - - -
122 HUD other projects 72,193 - - 20,639 - - - - -
124 Other governments - - “ 12,882 - 15,243 30,773 - 75,763
125 Miscellaneous 2,104 24,053 751 - - - - - 2.305
126 Tenants 35,029 23,213 - - - - - - -
126.% Allowangce for doubtful accounts (9,908} - - - - - - - -
127 Notes receivable current - - 1,200,523 - - - - - -
129 Accrued interest receivable 20,189 - 218,728 - - - - - -
120 Total receivables 119,607 47,266 1,421,002 33,521 - 15,243 30,773 - 78,068
Investments and Other Assets
142 Prepaid expanses and other assels 118,419 33,698.00 2,193 6,227 - - - - 110,575
144 Interprogram due from 3 - - - - - - - -
145 Assets held for sale - - - - - - - - -
15Q Total current assets 3,918,987 152,269 7,521,745 428,522 15,212 15,243 30,910 9,523 1,153,024
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment:
161 Land 1,814,516 123,600 1,073,914 - - - - - -
162 Buildings 67,726,414 106,400 ; - - - - - - 285477
Furniture, equipment and machinery:
163 Dwellings 8,693,365 - - - - - - - 54,643
164 Administration 1,685,078 - 31,773 17,897 - - - - 518,939
166 Accumulated depreciation (54,399,984) - (29,312) {17.897) - - - (887) (854,171)
167 Construction in progress 877,110 656,723 - - - - - - .
160 Total property and equipment, net
of accumulated depreciation 26,366,499 886,723 1,076,372 - - - - {887} 204,888
171 Notes receivable, noncurrent - - 12,149,322 - - - - - -
180 Total noncurrent assets 26,366,499 886,723 13,225,694 - - - - {887} 204,888
190 Total assets $ 30285486 % 1,038,992 % 20747439 3 429522 § 15212 _ § 15243 & 30810 § 8636 % 1,357,912
{Centinued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Balance Sheet {Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
September 30, 2014
Line
ltem Business Tax Increment Fiduciary
No. Account Description Statellocal CDBG Home Activities Lead Paint District Funds Total
Assets
Currant Assets
Cash:
111 Unrestricted $ 571,813 % 24896 § - $ 24670 % - $ 4735 % 120,652 5 3,094,313
113 Other restricted 228,503 418,003 - 61,791 - - - 1,037,290
Investments:
131 Unrestricted 2,843,000 - - - - - - 6,610,280
131 Restricted - - - - - - - 4,785,720
100 Total cash 3,643,016 442,899 - 86,461 - 4,735 120,652 15,527,603
Accounts and Notes Receivables
Accounts receivable:
121 PHA projects - - - - - - - -
122 HUD other projects - - - - - - - 92,832
124 Other governments 558,975 179,231 106,929 - 84,019 87.440 - 1,152,255
125 Miscellaneous 14,440 - 122,468 - - - - 166,121
126 Tenants - - - - - - - 58,242
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - - - - - - - (9.908)
127 Notes receivable current 454,393 - - - - - - 1,654,916
129 Accrued interest receivable 19,367 - - - - - - 259,284
120 Total receivables 1,048,175 179,231 229,397 - 84,018 87,440 - 3.373,742
Investments and Other Assels
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,876 3,406 - - - - - 278,384
144 Interpregram due from 1,882,264 - - - - - - 1,882,267
145 Assets held for sale 3,386,802 - - - - - - 3,386,802
150 Total current assets 9,964,133 625,536 229,397 86,461 84,019 92,175 120,652 24,448,808
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment:
161 Land 51,692 - - - - - - 3,063,719
162 Buildings - - - - - - - 68,118,281
. Fumiture, equipment and machinery:
163 Dwellings - - - - - u - 8,748,008
164 Administration 96,189 - - - - - - 2,319,876
166 Accumulated depreciation {92,689} - - - - - - {55,194,940)
167 Construction in progress - - - - - - - 1,633,833
160 Total property and equipment, net
of accumulated depreciation 55,192 - - - - - - 28,588,787
171 Notes receivable, noncurrent 5,079,965 1,152,140 - 620,028 - - - 20,001,455
180 Total noncurrent assets 6,135,157 1,152,140 - 620,028 - - - 48,590,242
190 Total assets $ 16009280 % 1,777,676 3 229397 5 706489 % 84019 & 92,175 § 120,652 $ 73,039,050
{Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Balance Sheet {Continued)
Financial Data Schedule

CLCctoboonoodoaaa

S D B RO B B

September 30, 2014
Other State
Line Section 8 Section 8 and County
Item Housing Choice Moderate Section 8 Shelter Emergency Central Office
No. Account Description Owned Housing Esmond Hope VI Vouchers Rehabilitation Programs Plus Care Service Grant Cost Center
Liabilities and Equity (Deficit)
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
312 Accounts payable $ 353,031 87,968 § 841 1,356 % 13 8 16 8 7,287 § - $ 7.991
321 Accrued wages/payroll taxes payable 40,111 - - 12,361 256 7 343 - 69,625
322 Accrued compensated absences 110,880 . - 32,222 680 236 896 - 96,099
325 Accrued interest payable - - - - - - - - -
Accounts payable:
331 HUD PHA programs - - . 25,180 3,908 - 1,037 - -
333 Other governmental 217,917 10,861 - - - - - - -
341 Tenant security deposits 191,032 6,345 - - - - - - -
342 Deferred revenue 97,076 - - - - - - 9,523 -
343 Current porticn of long-term debt, capital
projects/mortgage revenue bonds 254,050 - - - - - - - -
345 Other current liabilities 10,549 - - - - - - - -
346 Accrued liabilities, other 30,000 - - - - - - - -
347 Interprogram, due to 3 108,362 - - - 6,911 19,913 - -
310 Total current liabilities 1,313,649 213,536 841 71,119 4,837 7,234 29,456 9,523 173,715
Noncurrent liabilities:
351 Noncurrent debt, capital projectsfrevenue bonds 1,885,400 838,502 - - - - - - -
353 Noncurrent liabilities, other - - - 26,591 - - - - -
354 Accrued compensated absences, noncurrent 200,826 - - 52,209 1,070 383 1,454 - 221,456
300 Total liabilities 3,489,875 1,052,038 841 150,009 5,907 7617 30,910 9,523 305,171
Equity {Deficit}
508.1  Netinvestment in capital assets 24,227,049 48,221 1,076,372 - - - - (887) 204,888
5111 Restrictad fund balance - - 4,785,720 168,974 - - - - -
512.2  Unreserved, undesignated fund balance 2,568,562 {61,267) 4,884,506 110,539 9,305 7.626 - - 757,853
513 Total equity (deficit) 26,795,611 {13,046) 20,746,598 279,513 9,305 7,626 - {887} 962,741
600 Total liabilities and equity $ 30,285,486 1,038,992 $ 20,747,439 420522 § 15,212 % 15243 % 30,910 §$ 8636 § 1,357,912
(Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Balance Sheet {Continued)
Financial Data Schedule

September 30, 2014
Line
Itam Business Tax Increment Fiduciary
No. Account Description Stateflocal CDBG Home Activities Lead Paint District Funds Total
Liabilities and Equity (Deficit}
Liabitities
Current lizbilities:
312 Accounts payable % 82,105 § 95417 § 88,896 § 448  § 6,563 % 58 % 9285 § 741,255
321 Accrued wages/payroll taxes payable 3,824 9,930 185 - - - - 136,706
322 Accrued compensated absences 11,622 41,315 708 - - - - 303,638
325 Accrued interest payable 7,979 - - - - - - 7,979
Accounts payable:
331 HUD PHA programs - - - - - - - 30,125
333 Other governmental - - - - - - - 228,778
341 Tenant security deposits - - - - - - - 197.377
342 Deferred revenue 257,936 - - 8,500 - 43,720 109,216 525,971
343 Current portion of long-term debt, capital
projects/mortgage revenue bonds 69,277 - - - - - - 323,327
345 Other current liabilities 34,081 - - - - - - 44,630
348 Accrued liabilities, other - - ] 9,260 - - - 39,268
347 Interprogram, due to 1,305,781 108,399 134,894 - 77,456 120,548 - 1,882,267
310 Total current liabilities 1,772,605 255,081 224,692 18,208 84,019 164,326 118,501 4,461,322
Nongcurrent liabilities:
351 Nongurrent debt, capital projects/revenue bonds 727,937 - - - - - - 3,451,839
353 Noncurrent lizbilities, other 2,080,034 - - - - - - 2,116,625
354 Accrued compensated absences, noncurrent 54,312 106,808 1,150 - - - - 729,758
300 Total liabilities 4,644,888 361,869 225,842 18,208 84,019 164,326 118,501 10,759,544
Equity {Deficit)
8508.1  Netinvestment in capital assels 55,192 - - - - - - 25,610,835
511.1  Restricted fund balance - - - - - - - 4,954,694
5122  Unreserved, undesignated fund balance 11,389,210 1,415,807 3,555 688,281 - {72,151) 2,151 31,713,977
513 Total equity (deficit) 11,454,402 1,415,807 3,555 688,281 - (72,151) 2,151 62,279,506
600 Total liabilities and equity $ 16009290 § 1777676 % 229397 % 706,489 % 84,019 & 92,175 § 120,652 § 73,039,050
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Housing and Redevelopment Autharity of Duluth, Minnesota
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014
Other State
Line Section 8 Section 8 and County
ltem Housing Choice Maoderate Section 8 Shelter Emergency Central Office
No. Account Description QOwned Housing Esmond Hope VI Vouchers Rehabilitation Programs Plus Care Service Grant Caost Cenler
Revenue
Tenant:
70300 Rental $§ 2566477 § 64,215 - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ -
70400 Other 216,508 4,130 - - - - - - -
70500 Total tenant revenue 2,782,986 68,345 - - - - - . _
70600 MUD PHA grants 2,699,638 - - 7,745,052 124,403 - 291,575 - -
70610 Capital grants 1,233,122 - - - - - - - .
70800 Other government grants - - - - - 200,077 - 120,580 -
70710 Management fee - - - - - - - - 1,551,685
71100 Investment income, unrestricted 14,101 - 582,345 - - - - - 29
71200 Mortgage interest - - - - - - - - -
71400 Fraud recovery - - - 18,608 - - - - -
71500 Other revenue 295,065 445 - 38,219 - 1,704 - - -
71600 Gain or loss on sale of capital assets (20,407) - - - - - - - -
72000 Investment income, restricted - - - - - - - - -
70000 Total revenue 7,008,485 68,790 582,345 7.801,879 124.403 201,781 291,575 120,580 1,551,714
Expenses
Administrative:
91100 Salaries 520,380 61,455 - 404,856 8,619 5,174 11,905 - 906,660
91200 Auditing fees 25,641 - 2,612 7.637 368 229 85 - -
91300 Management fee 851,998 9,410 - 190,250 4,418 1,881 11,086 - -
1310 Book-keeping fes 93,158 - - 122,228 2618 1,568 3,615 - -
31400 Advertising and marketing 5,925 81 - 169 - - - - 169
1500 Employee benefit contributions 204,119 - - 173,507 3,697 2,212 5,101 - 333,624
91600 Office expenses 225,068 8,566 652 98,579 5,465 1,158 14,332 14,339 203,390
91700 Legal 32,786 24,784 2,044 1,397 - - - - 26,239
91800 Travel 13,679 2 - 1,345 50 38 21 - 3,386
91900 Other 176,720 - - - - - - 106,241 -
Total administrative 2,148.474 104,298 5,308 999,968 25,235 12,260 46,145 120,580 1,473,468
Tenant services;
92100 Salaries 19,242 - - - - - - - -
92400 Crther 9.293 - - - - - - - -
92500 Total tenant services 28,535 - - - - - - - -
Utilities:
93100 Water 178,692 4,367 518 - - - - - -
93200 Electricity 342,845 5,107 7.026 - - - - - 1,178
93300 Gas 342,569 6,378 - - - - - - -
93400 Fuet - - 4,342 - - - - - -
93000 Total utilities 864,306 15,862 11,886 - - - D - 1,178
Ordinary maintenance and operation:
94100 Labor 895,873 - - - - - - - -
94200 Materials and other 276,026 3,376 69 395 1 44 2 - 3,529
94300 Contract costs 540,003 3,097 17,046 28 - - - - 1,503
94500 Employee benefit contributions 397,463 - - - - - - - -
94000 Total erdinary maintenance and operation 2,109,365 7,373 17,115 423 1 44 2 - 5,032
{Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity (Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended Septemnber 30, 2014

Line
Item Business Tax Increment Fiduciary
Nao. Acceunt Description State/Local CDBG Home Activities Lead Paint District Funds Total
Revenue
Tenant:
70300 Rental $ -3 - % - 3 -8 - % S - $ 2630692
70400 Other - - - B - . - 220,639
70500 Total tenant revenue - B - - - - . 2,851,331
70600 HUD PHA grants - 589,034 404,452 - 377,924 - - 12,232,078
70610 Capital grants - - - - - - - 1,233,122
70800 Other government grants - - - 95,877 - - 2,707 419,241
70710 Management fee - . - - - - - 1,551,685
71100 Investment income, unrestricted 212,964 77 - 2 - - - 809,518
71200 Mortgage interest - - - - - - - .
71400 Fraud recovery - - - - - - - 18,608
71500 Other revenue 1,261,437 57,824 - 5.029 - 151,782 . 1,815,485
71600 Gain or loss on sale of capital assets (357,719) - - {48,441} - - - {426,567}
72000 Investment income, restricted - - - - - - - -
70000 Total revenue \ 1,116,682 646,935 404,452 52,467 377.924 151,782 2,707 20,504,511
Expenses
Administrative:
91100 Salaries 208,614 167,449 7.628 1,052 153,449 1.045 - 2,456,186
91200 Auditing fees 815 4,599 15 - - - - 42,001
91300 Management fee - - 5450 - - - - 1,074,533
91310 Book-keeping fee - - 2,288 - - - - 225,475
91400 Advertising and marketing 38,927 - - - 528 - - 45,797
91500 Employee benefit contributions 71,896 73,830 3,264 462 70,023 330 - 942,065
91600 Office expenses 170,330 13,053 718 735 73,373 2,976 1 832,735
91700 Legal 82,500 874 - 254 - 7.980 - 178,967
91800 Travel 1,520 2,299 B 48 650 - - 23,046
91800 Cther 53,142 318,275 218,118 95,902 79,903 123.603 - 1,171,804
Total administrative 625,753 580,479 237,429 98,453 377,924 135,934 1 6,992,709
Tenant services:
92100 Salaries - - - - - - - 19,242
92400 Other - - - - - - - 9,203
92500 Total tenant services - - - - - - - 28,535
Utilities:
93100 Water 3,878 - - 34 - - - 187,689
93200 Electricity 14,839 - - 29 - - - 371,024
93300 Gas - - - 9 - - - 348,856
93400 Fuel 10,014 - - - - - - 14,356
93000 Total utilities 28,731 - - 72 - - - 922,025
Ordinary maintenance and operation:
94100 Labor - - - - - - - 895,873
94200 Materials and other 1,667 - 1 - - - 576 285,686
94300 Contract costs 17,668 1,472 - 579 - - 1,570 583,866
94500 Employee benefit contributions - - - - - - - 397,463
94000 Total ordinary maintenance and operation 19,335 1,472 1 579 - - 2,146 2,162,888

{Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity (Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014
Other State
Line Section 8 Section 8 and County
ltem Housing Choice Moderate Section 8 Shelter Emergency Central Office
No. Account Description Owned Housing Esmond Hope VI Vouchers Rehabilitation Programs Plus Care Service Grant Cost Center
Expenses
Protective services:
95200 Contract costs 3 9270 $ - 8 1917 % - % - % - % - . -
95300 Other 1,533 - - - - - - - -
Total protective services expenses 10,803 - 1,917 - - - - - -
General expanses:
96100 Insurance premiums 179,216 12,584 2,513 8,381 188 245 158 - 13,125
96210 Compensated absences 67,132 “ - (12,943) (183} (702) (32) - 19,835
96300 Payments in lieu of laxes 165,942 - - - - - - - N
96400 Bad debt-tenant rents 25411 - 4,689 - - - - - -
96710 interest on mortgage (or bands) payable 108,393 - - - - - - - -
96800 Severance expense 584 - - - - ~ - - 314
Total general expenses 546,678 12,584 7,202 (4,562) 5 (457} 126 - 33,274
96900 Total operating expenses 5,709,161 140,107 43,428 995,829 25,241 11,847 46,273 120,580 1,512,852
97100 Extraordinary maintenance 171,654 - - - - - - - -
97200 Casually losses, noncapitalized 11,101 - - - - - - - -
97300 Housing assistance payments - - “ 6,647,647 101,037 186,097 245439 - -
97400 Depreciation expense 2,097,909 - - - - - - 887 15,091
90000 Total expenses 7,989,825 140,107 43,428 7,643,476 126,278 197,944 201,712 121,467 1,528,043
Excess {deficit} of revenue
over expenses (981,330) (71,317} 538,917 158,403 (1.879) 3,837 {137) (887) 23,671
Other Financing Scurces (Uses}
Interfund transfers:
10010 In 1,810,745 58,271 - - 1,790 - 137 - -
10020 Out (1,803,004) - - - - - - - -
10100 Total other financing sources {(uses) 7,741 58,271 - - 1,780 - 137 - -
10000 Excess of revenue and other financing
sources over (under) expenses and
and other financing uses 3 (973.580) § (13,046) § 538017 % 158403 & (85) § 3837 % - (887} 23671
Changes in Fund Equity (Deficit)
Balance, Octeber 1, 2013 3 27,769,200 $ - $ 20,207681 $ 121,110 % 9390 § 3789 % - - 939,070
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses (973,589) (13,048) 538,917 158,403 (85) 3,837 - {8B7) 23,671
Balance, Seplember 30, 2014 $ 26795611 § (13.046) § 20746598 % 279513 % 9305 § 7626 % - {887) 962,741
(Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity (Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014
Line
ltem Business Tax Increment Fiduciary
No. Account Description State/Local CDBG Home Aclivities Lead Paint District Funds Total
Expenses
Protective services:
95200 Contract costs $ 60,551 % - 3 - $ - 8 - % - 3 - % 71,738
95300 Other - - - - - - - 1,533
Total protective services expenses 60,551 - - - - - - 73,271
General expenses:
96100 Insurance premiums 3,496 4,983 117 - - - - 225,006
96210 Compensated absences 7,733 10,896 932 - - - - 92,668
96300 Payments in lieu of faxes - - - - - - - 165,942
96400 Bad debt-tenant rents - - - = - . - 30,100
96710 Interest on mortgage {or bonds) payable 117,656 . - - - 4,673 - 230,722
98800 Severance expense 243,635 - - - - - - 244,533
Total general expenses 372,520 15,879 1,049 - - 4,673 - 988,971
96900 Total operating expenses 1,106,890 597,830 238,479 99,104 377,924 140,607 2,147 11,168,399
97100 Extraordinary maintenance - - - - - - - 171,654
97200 Casualty losses, noncapitalized - - - - - - - 11,101
97300 Housing assistance payments - - 168,309 - - - - 7,348,529
97400 Depreciation expense 913 - - - - - - 2,114,800
90000 Total expenses 1,107,803 597,830 406,788 99,104 377,924 140,607 2,147 20,814,483
Excess {deficit) of revenue
over expenses 8,879 49,105 (2,338) {46,637) - 11,175 560 (309,872}
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund transfers:
10010 In 245,285 22,045 309 - - - - 2,138,582
10020 Out {335,578) - - - - - - {2,138,582)
10100 Total other financing sources (uses) {90,283) 22,045 309 - - - - -
10000 Excess of revenue and other financing
sources over (under) expenses and
and other financing uses $ {81,414} § 71,180 % (2,027) % {46,637) 3 -3 11,475 § 560  § (309972}
Changes in Fund Equity {Deficit)
Balance, October 1, 2013 $ 11535816 3 1,344,657 § 5582 $ 734,918 % - $ (83,326) % 1,591 & 62,589,478
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses {81,414) 71,150 (2,027} {46,637} - 11,175 560 (308,972)
Balance, September 30, 2014 $ 11454402 § 1415807 § 3555 § 688,281 _§ - $ {72151) § 2,151 _§ 62,279,506
(Continued}
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity (Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Other State
Section 8 Section 8 and County
Line Hausing Choice Moderate Section 8 Sheiter Emergency  Central Office
liem No. Account Description Owned Housing Hope VI Vouchers Rehabilitation Programs Plus Care Service Grant  Cost Center
Memo Account Information
11020 Debt principal repayment $ 242147 $ - % - % - $ - 3 - 5 - $ -
11030 Beginning equity $ 27,769,200 $ 20207681 $ 121,110 § 9390 § 3780 § - $ - $ 939,070
11040 Prior period adjustments equity
transfers, correction of errors $ - 3 - $ - 8 - 8 - % - % - $ -
14170 Administrative fee equity $ -8 - % 110,539 § - 5 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
11180 Housing assistance payment equity $ - $ - $ 168974 §$ - $ - $ - $ - 3 -
11200 Unit-months available 13,812 - 17,664 396 209 - - -
11210 Number of unit-months leased 13,619 - 16,297 348 208 - - -
11270 Excess cash $ 1626333 § - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ -
11620 Building purchases $ 1,620,085 § - 8 - 5 - 8 - % - 8 - 8 -
Furniture and equipment:
11630 Dwelling purchases $ - 8 - 3 - % - % - 8 - 5 - % -
11640 Administrative purchases $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - % - 8 - % 21995

{Continued)
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity (Continued)
Financial Data Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Line _ Business Tax Increment  Fiduciary
Item No. Account Description State/Local CDBG Home Activifies Lead Paint District Funds Total
Memo Account Information
11020 Debt principal repayment $ 1093461 § - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,335,608
11030 Beginning equity $ 11535816 $ 1.3448657 § 5582 § 734918 § - $ (83.328) $ 1,581 $ 62,589,478
11040  Prior period adjustments equity )
transfers, correction of errors $ - 3 - 8 - 85 - 8 - % - % - % -
11170 Administrative fee equity $ - 8 - 3 - 8 - 8 - % - % - % 110,539
11480 Housing assistance payment equity $ - % - % - 3 - 8 - % - 8 - % 168,974
11200 Unit-menths available - - 305 - - - - 32,386
11210 Number of unit-months [eased - - 305 - - - - 30,778
11270 Excess cash $ - $ - $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ - % 1626333
11620  Building purchases 5 - 8 - 8 - § - $ - % - 8 - $ 1,620,085
Furniture and equipment:
11630 Dwelling purchases $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - % - 8 - 3 - % -
11640 Adriristrative purchases $ - 5 - % - 3% - % - § - % - § 21,895
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Federal CFC Federal Awards

Contract Number  Number Expended
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through City of Duluth:
Comrmunity Development Block Grants/ Entiflement Grants 021406 14218 % 15,663
Community Development Biock Grants/ Entitlement Grants 021727 14.218 180
Community Development Block Grants/ Entitiement Grants 021935 14.218 27,046
Community Development Block Grants/ Entitlement Grants 021986 14,218 400,819
Community Development Block Grants/ Entitlement Granis 022225 14.218 145,316
589,034
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 022001 14.231 120,580
Shelter Plus Care 3C558 14.238 291,575
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 021417 14.239 24,011
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 021726 14.239 193,798
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 021982 14.239 81,044
HOME iInvestment Parinerships Program CD14HM 14.239 105,599
404,452
Direct:
Public and Indian Housing C-94¢9 14.850 2,699,638
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program:
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation C-40725R 14.856 51,908
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation C-4072MR 14.856 72,495
124,403
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers MNOO3VO/AF 14.871 7.680,336
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46FP00350111 14.872 12,782
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46R0O0350211 14.872 17,273
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46P00350112 14.872 602,209
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46R00350212 14.872 113,767
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46P00350113 14.872 480,887
Public Housing Capital Fund MN46R00350213 14,872 6,204
1,233,122
Family Self-Sufficiency Program MNOO3VO/AF 14.896 64,716
64,716
Passed through Minnesota Department of Health:
Minnesota Housing Finance Agency:
Passed through City of Duluth:
Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 21339 14,905 215,911
Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 022063 14.905 162,013
377,924
Total U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 13,585,780

Note - Basis of presentation: The schedule of expenditures of Federal awards includes the Federal grant activity of the
Authority and is presented on the accrual basis. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Duluth, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated April 22, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of

Duluth, Minnesota's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/?4-%447 Lo

Duluth, Minnesota
April 22, 2015
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McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance For Each
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Duluth, Minnesota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effecton each of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth,
Minnesota's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014. The Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grants applicable to its federal programs.

_Auditor’'s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth,
Minnesota’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Managemaent of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal controt over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considerad the
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program {o
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Mirinesota's internal

control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such thatthereisa
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compitance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%&%&7 Lo

Duluth, Minnesota
April 22, 2015
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

*  Material weakness{es) identified?

«  Significant deficiency{ies) identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

+  Material weakness(es) identified?

»  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
are not considered to be material
weakness(es)?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs:

e Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of Circular A-1337

ldentification of major program:

CFDA Number

Unmedified

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Unmodified

Yes X No

Name of Federal Program

14.871
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and B programs

Auditeg qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Section 8 Housing Chaoice Vouchers

$ 407,573

X Yes No



Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Il.  Financial Statement Findings
A, Internal Control
None Reported
B. Compliance Findings
None Reported
. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
A. Internal Control

None Reported
B. Compliance Findings

None Reported
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2014

No prior year audit findings
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Independent Auditor's Report on Minnesota Legal Compliance

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota
Duluth, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, .
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 22, 2015.

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions, promulgated by the State Auditor
pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and
bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements,
miscellaneous provisions and tax increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Housing and
Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota failed to comply with the provisions of the Minnesota
Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Housing and Redevelopment
Authority of Duluth, Minnesota's noncompliance with the above referenced provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable

for any other purpose.

/ZZM Ll

Duluth, Minnesota
April 22, 2015
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Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Duluth, Minnesota

Scheduie of Public Housing Capital Funds
September 30, 2014

2011 Capital Fund

MN46R00350211
Funds Approved $ 95,430
Funds Expended 95,430
Excess of funds approved 3 -
Status Complete
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